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In the Matter 0 r
I

Dow Reichhold Specialty
Latex, LLC I

2400 Ellis Road I

Durham, North Carolina
27703,

Respond,ent.

I

Dow Reichholdlspecialty

~~e;~;kLiran~hRoad

Dover, Delawa"le
19904,

Facility·1

I

UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION III

1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-2029

) EPA Docket No.: CERC-03-2008-0344 •
) EPA Docket No.: EPCRA-03-2008-0344
)
)
)
)
)
)
) Administrative Complaint and Notice of
) Opportunity for a Hearing filed under Sections
) 103 and 109 of the Comprehensive
) Environmental Response, Compensation, and
) Liahility Act, as amended, 42 U.S.c. §§ 9603,
) 9609, and Sections 304 and 325 of the
) Emergency Planning and Community
) Right-to-Know Act of 1986, 42 U.S.C. §§ 11004,
) 11045
)
)

ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLAINT

This Administrative Complaint and Notice of Opportunity for a Hearing (hereinafter
"Complaint") isl issued pursuant to the authority vested in the President of the United States by
Section 109 of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act,

I

as amended, ("aERCLA"), 42 U.S.c. § 9609, delegated to the Administrator of the United
States Environnhental Protection Agency ("EPA" or the "Agency") by Executive Order No.
12580, January 123, 1987,52 Fed. Reg. 2923, further delegated to the Regional Administrators by
EPA DelegatiOif No. 14-3 I, and redelegated to Complainant by EPA Region III Delegation No.
14-3 I. This COPlplaint is also being filed pursuant to the authority vested in the Administrator
of EPA by Section 325 of the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act of 1986
("EPCRA"), 42 u.s.C. § 11045, delegated to the Regional Administrators by EPA Delegation
No. 22-3-A, ana redelegated to Complainant by EPA Region III Delegation No. 22-3-A.
Further, this Cdmplaint is being filed pursuant to the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing
the Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties, Issuance of Compliance or Corrective Action
Orders, and thel Revocation, Termination, or Suspension of Permits ("Consolidated Rules of
Practice"), 40 a.F.R. Part 22, a copy of which is enclosed with this Complaint as Attachment A.
The comPlaintt is the Director of the Hazardous Site Cleanup Division for EPA Region III.

I
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The Respondent is Dow Reichhold Specialty Latex, LLC ("Respondent" or "DRSL").
Respondent is he~eby notified of EPA's determination that Respondent has violated the
requirements andlprohibitions of Section 103 ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.c. § 9603, Section 304 of
EPCRA, 42 U,Sf § 11004, and their respective implementing regulations, 40 C.F.R. Parts 302
and 355. In sUPPfrt of its Complaint, Complainant alleges the following:

I GENERAL ALLEGAnONS

1. R6spondent is a Delaware limited liability company, formed as a joint venture
between The Dot Chemical Company and Reichhold, Inc., with its principal place of business
located at 2400 Ellis Road, Suite 100, in Durham, North Carolina.

1

2. Ak a limited liability company formed as a joint venture, Respondent is a
"person" as defirfed by Section 101(21) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9601(21), and Section 329(7)
of EPCRA, 42 d.S.C. § 11049(7), and their respective regulations, 40 C.F.R. §§ 302.3 and
355.20.

3. BFginning on or about January 1, 2002, and at all times relevant to this
Complaint, Res~ondentwas in charge of, within the meaning of Section 103(a) of CERCLA, 42
U.S.c. § 9603(a), the DRSL facility located at 144 Fork Branch Road in Dover, Delaware,

,

("Dover facility'l or "Facililty").

4. ~eginning on or about January 1,2002, and at all times relevant to this
Complaint, ResRondent has operated the Dover facility, within the meaning of Section 304 of
EPCRA, 42 U,S C. § 11004.

5. 1]he Dover facility is a "facility," as defined by Section 101(9) ofCERCLA, 42
U.S.C. § 9601(9

1

), and Section 329(4) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11049(4), and their respective
regulations, 40 a:.F.R. §§ 302.3 and 355.20.

I
6. Ifazardous chemicals, including 1,3-butadiene, Chemical Abstracts Service

("CAS") No. 196-99-0, and styrene, CAS No. 100-42-5, were stored and used at the Dover
facility at all tiles relevant to this Complaint.

, .
7. Q)n or about May 9, 2006, EPA sent an InformatIOn Request Letter to the

Respondent pur~uant to Section 104(e) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9604(e), seeking information in
connection wit~ a release of 1,3-butadiene from the Dover facility on July 3, 2005.

I .

8. IDn or about May 26, 2006, Respondent proVided a Response to EPA's May 9,
2006 InformatiJn Request Letter.

I
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9. 01 or about June 26, 2007, EPA sent an Information Request Letter to the
Respondent pursJant to Section 104(e) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9604(e), seeking information in
connection withirelease of styrene from the Dover facility, which began on August 25,2006.

10. On or about August 20,2007, Respondent provided a Response to EPA's June 26,
2007 Infoffi1atiorl Request Letter.

II. SLtion 102(a) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9602(a), requires the Administrator of
the EPA to pUbli~h a list of substances designated as hazardous substances, which when released
into the enviroru:j1ent may present substantial danger to public health or welfare or to the
environment, anq to promulgate regulations establishing that quantity of any hazardous
substance, the release of which shall be required to be reported under Section 103(a) of
CERCLA, 42 U.~.C. § 9603(a) ("Reportable Quantity" or "RQ"). The list of hazardous
substances is codified at 40 C.F.R. § 302.4.

I

COUNT I - VIOLATION OF SECTION 103 OF CERCLA-
I JULY 3, 20051,3-BUTADIENE RELEASE

12. The allegations contained in paragraphs I through II of this Complaint are
incorporated by reference herein as though fully set forth at length.

13. sJection 103(a) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9603(a), as implemented by 40 C.F.R.
Part 302, requires, in relevant part, a person in charge of a facility, to immediately notifY the
National Resporlse Center ("NRC") established under Section 31 I(d)(2)(E) of the Clean Water

I

Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. § 1321 (d)(2)(E), as soon as he/she has knowledge ofa release (other
than a federally bermitted release) of a hazardous substance from such facility in a quantity equal
to or greater thM the RQ.

14. Jpon information and belief, beginning on or about July 3, 2005, at or about 1:07
a.m., approXim~tely 1,154 pounds of 1,3-butadiene were released from the Dover facility (the
"Butadiene Release").

IS. J,3-butadiene is a hazardous substance, as defined under Section 101(14) of
CERCLA, 42 lj.S.C. § 9601(14), and 40 C.F.R. § 302.4, with an RQ of 10 pounds, as listed in 40
C.F.R. § 302.4.1

I

16. The Release constitutes a "release," as defined by Section 101(22) ofCERCLA,

~,;:;;;~,",:;j~~lo:"'::"";,;;;r;l ;::;;;;;'::"'''''00' 'ob"",,,, in , q""'" ~ OJ,," ro, 0<
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I

17. T~e Release was not a "federally pennitted release" as that tenn is used in
Section 103(a) o~CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9603(a), and 40 C.F.R. § 302.6, and defined in Section
101(10) ofCERqLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9601(10).

18. ubon infonnation and belief, Respondent had or should have had knowledge of
~he July 3, 2005 ~elease of I ,3-butadiene from the Facility, in a quantity equal to or greater than
Its RQ, at I :10 a.m. on July 3, 2005.

19. R~spondent did not notifY the NRC of the Butadiene Release until or about 3:05
a.m. on July 3, 21D05, approximately 2 hours after the Respondent knew or should have known
that a release ofJhazardous substance had occurred from the Dover facility in a quantity equal
to or greater than its RQ.

20. R~spondent failed to notifY the NRC ofthe Butadiene Release, as soon as the
Respondent had knowledge of the Release, as required by Section 103(a) of CERCLA, 42 U.S.C.
§ 9603(a), and 4b C.F.R. § 302.6.

21. Jespondent's failure to immediately notifY the NRC of the Butadiene Release as
,

soon as Responejent had knowledge of the Release, is a violation of Section 103(a) ofCERCLA,
42 U.S.c. § 9603(a), and is, therefore, subject to the assessment of penalties under Section 109
ofCERCLA, 42Iu.s.c. § 9609.

I

COUNT III - VIOLATION OF SECTION 304 a AND b OF EPCRA - SERC
JULY 3, 2005 1.3-BUTADIENE RELEASE

22. ]Ihe allegations contained in paragraphs I through 21 of this Complaint are
incorporated by reference herein as though fully set forth at length.

23. Jection 304(a) and (b) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11004(a) and (b), as implemented
by 40 C.F.R. § 355.40(b)(l) and (2), requires, in relevant part, the owner or operator of a facility
at which hazardbus chemicals are produced, used, or stored, to notifY the State Emergency
Response Corruhission ("SERC") and the Local Emergency Planning Committee ("LEPC")
immediately fol1lowing a release of a hazardous substance in a quantity equal to or greater than
the RQ for the ~azardous substance, if that release requires notification under Section 103(a) of
CERCLA, 42i'S'C' § 9603(a).

24. The SERC for the Dover facility is, and has been at all times relevant to this
Complaint, the pelaware Department of Natural Resources and Environmental Control

("'DNRCC') '1'" R"""",,, C~"", ,,,',,' " 156 "mfu S"" ,,~, in"'wo<, "'I,w= 19901
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25. T e Butadiene Release constitutes a release of a hazardous substance, in a
quantity equal to,1 or greater than, its RQ, requiring immediate notification of the NRC pursuant
to Section 103(a)lofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9603(a), and 40 C.F.R. § 302.6, and consequently
requiring immediate notification of the SERC and the LEPC pursuant to Section 304(a) and (b)
of EPCRA, 42 uis.c. § 11004(a) and (b), and 40 C.F.R. § 355.40(b)(1) and (2).

26. Rispondent did not notifY the SERC of the Butadiene Release until or about 3:21
I

a.m. on July 3, 2f05, more than 2 hours after Respondent gained knowledge or should have
gained knowledl\e that a release of a hazardous substance had occurred from the Facility in an
amount equal to br greater than its RQ.

27. R~spondent did not immediately notifY the SERC of the occurrence of the
Butadiene Release as soon as the Respondent had knowledge or should have had knowledge of
the release, as reeuired by Section 304(a) and (b) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11004(a) and (b), and
40 CF.R. § 355r(b)(l) and (2).

28. R!espondent's failure to notifY the SERC immediately following the Butadiene
Release is a viol~tion of Section 304(a) and (b) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C § 11004(a) and (b), and is,
therefore, subject to the assessment of penalties under Section 325 ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C.
§ 11 045.

COUNT III - VIOLATION OF SECTION 304(a) AND (b) OF EPCRA - LEPC -
I JULY 3. 2005 1.3-BUTADIENE RELEASE

29. The allegations contained in paragraphs I through 28 of this Complaint are
incorporated by/reference herein as though fully set forth at length.

30. The LEPC for the Dover facility is, and has been at all times relevant to this
Complaint, the Kent County LEPC, located at the Kent County Emergency Services Building,
911 Public saf1ty Boulevard in Dover, Delaware 19901.

31. Respondent did not notifY the LEPC of the Butadiene Release until or about 3: 17
a.m, on July 3, ~005, more than 2 hours after Respondent gained knowledge or should have
gained knowledge that a release of a hazardous substance had occurred from the Facility in an
amount equal tb or greater than its RQ.

I
32. Respondent did not immediately notifY the LEPC of the occurrence ofthe

Butadiene Rel9ase as soon as the Respondent had knowledge or should have had knowledge of
the release, as required by Section 304(a) and (b) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11004(a) and (b), and
40 CF.R. § 355.40(b)(l) and (2).

-5-
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33. Respondent's failure to notify the LEPC immediately following the Butadiene
Release is a violation of Section 304(a) and (b) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 11004(a) and (h), and is,
therefore, subject to the assessment of penalties under Section 325 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C.
§ 11045.

COU T IV - VIOLATION OF SECTION 304(.) OF EPCRA - SERC
JULY 3. 20051,3-BUTADIENE RELEASE

34. The allegations contained in paragraphs I through 33 of this Complaint are
incorporated by 1eference herein as though fully set forth at length.

35. Section 304(c) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 11004(c), as implemented by 40 C.F.R.
§ 355.40(b)(3), rFquires, in relevant part, that when there has been a release ofa hazardous
substance in a quantity equal to or greater than the RQ from a facility at which hazardous
chemicals are prbduced, used, or stored, the owner or operator of that facility must provide a
written follow-u~ report regarding the release to the SERC and the LEPC, as soon as practicable.

I
36. Tlhe Butadiene Release constitutes a release of a hazardous substance in a quantity

equal to, or greater than, its RQ, requiring immediate notification of the SERC and LEPC
pursuant to Sections 304(a) and (b) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 11004(a) and (b), and 40 C.F.R.
§ 355.40(b)(l) ilid (2), and, consequently, requiring submission of written follow-up reports to
the SERC and UEPC pursuant to Section 304(c) ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11004(c), and 40 C.F.R.
§ 355.40(b)(3).

37. l}espondent did not provide a written follow-up report regarding the Butadiene
Release to the SiERC until or about July 18,2005.

38. ~espondent did not provide a written follow-up report regarding the Butadiene
Release to the ~ERC as soon as practicable after Respondent had knowledge of the release, as
required by seTon 304(c) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11004(c), and 40 C.F.R. § 355.40(b)(3).

39. Respondent's failure to provide a written follow-up report regarding the
Butadiene Rele~se to the SERC, as soon as practicable, is a violation of Section 304(c) of
EPCRA, 42 U.~.C. § 11004(c), and is, therefore, subject to the assessment of penalties under
Section 325 of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045.

-6·



IIn the Matter orDor Reichhold Specialty Latex, LLC EPA Docket NO~~~~:~;:;::::::~;::

COUNT V - VIOLATION OF SECTION 103 OF CERCLA
AUGUST 25. 2006 STYRENE RELEASE

40. The allegations contained in paragraphs I through 39 of this Complaint are
incorporated by r~ference herein as though fully set forth at length.

41. ubon information and belief, beginning on or about August 25, 2006, at or about
6:30 p.m., appro*mately 19,601 pounds of styrene were released from the Dover facility (the
"Styrene Releasel')'

42. SVyrene is a hazardous substance, as defined under Section 101(14) ofCERCLA,
42 U.S.c. § 960](14), and 40 C.F.R. § 302.4, with an RQ of 1000 pounds, as listed in 40 C.F.R.
§ 302.4.

43. The Styrene Release constitutes a "release," as defined by Section 101 (22) of
CERCLA, 42 U.~.c. § 9601(22), and 40 C.F.R. § 302.3, ofa hazardous substance in a quantity
equal to, or greater than, the RQ for that hazardous substance.

I

44. The Styrene Release was not a "federally permitted release" as that term is used
I

in Section 103(aD ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.c. § 9603(a), and 40 C.F.R. § 302.6, and defined in
Section 101 (I O)!OfCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9601(10).

45. qpon information and belief, Respondent had or should have had knowledge of
the release of s!Xrene, from the Facility, in a quantity equal to or greater than its RQ, at 7:30 p.m.
on August 25, 2b06.

46. Jpon information and belief, Respondent did not attempt to notify the NRC of the
styrene release ~ntil sometime after midnight on August 26, 2006.

I

47. ~espondent failed to notify the NRC of the Styrene Release, as soon as the
Respondent kn9w or should have known of the release of styrene, from the Facility, in a quantity
equal to or greater than its RQ, as required by Section 103(a) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.c. § 9603(a),
and 40 C.F.R. § 302.6.

48. Respondent's failure to immediately notify the NRC of the Styrene Release as
soon as Respon~ent knew or should have known of the Release, is a violation of Section 103(a)
ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9603(a), and is, therefore, subject to the assessment of penalties under
Section 109 ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9609.

I

-7-
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COUNT VI - VIOLATION OF SECTION 304(c) OF EPCRA - SERC 
AUGUST 25, 2006 STYRENE RELEASE

49. The allegations contained in paragraphs I through 48 of this Complaint are
incorporated by ieference herein as though fully set forth at length.

50. The Styrene Release constitutes a release ofa hazardous substance, in a quantity
equal to, or greater than, its RQ, requiring immediate notification of the NRC pursuant to
Section 103(a) of.CERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9603(a), and 40 C.F.R. § 302.6, and consequently
requiring immed,iate notification of the SERC and the LEPC pursuant to Section 304(a) and (b)
of EPCRA, 421.s.c. § 11004(a) and (b), and 40 C.F.R. § 355.40(b)(I) and (2).

51. Riespondent notified the SERC and the LEPC of the Styrene Release when
representatives drrived at the Dover facility on August 25, 2006.

52. ihe Styrene Release constitutes a release of a hazardous substance in a quantity
equal to, or gre~ter than, its RQ, requiring immediate notification of the SERC and LEPC
pursuant to Sections 304(a) and (b) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11004(a) and (b), and 40 C.F.R.
§ 355.40(b)(l) dnd (2), and, consequently, requiring submission of written follow-up reports to
the SERC and UEPC pursuant to Section 304(c) of EPCRA, 42 USc. § 11004(c), and 40 C.F.R.
§ 355.40(b)(3).

53. Respondent did not provide a written follow-up report regarding the Styrene
, .

Release to the iERC unlil or about September 27, 2006.

54. Respondent did not provide a written follow-up report regarding the Styrene
I •

Release to the ~ERC as soon as praelieable after Respondent had knowledge of the release, as
required by Se9tion 304(c) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 11004(c), and 40 C.F.R. § 355.40(b)(3).

I

55. f-espondent's failure to provide a written follow-up report regarding the Styrene
Release to the SERC, as soon as practicable, is a violation of Section 304(c) of EPCRA, 42
U.S.c. § II00i(c), and is, thcrcfore, subject to the assessment of penalties under Section 325 of
EPCRA, 42 U..C. § 11045.

PROPOSED CERCLA AND EPCRA PENALTIES

PROPOSED CERCLA PENALTY

SeetioI1l09(a) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.c. § 9609(a), authorizes EPA to assess a penalty not
to exceed $25fOO.00 per violation of the notice requirements of Section 103 of CERCLA, 42
U.S.c. § 9603

1
Pursuant to the Debt Collection Improvement Act of 1996 CDCIA") and the

-8-
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subsequent CivillMonetary Penalty Inflation Adjustment Rule, 69 Fed. Reg. 7121, (Feb. 13,
2004), codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 19, ("Penalty Inflation Rule"), copies of which are enclosed
with this Compl~int as Attachment B, violations of Section 103 of CERCLA that occur after
March 15,2004, lare subject to a statutory maximum penalty of$32,500.00 per violation. In the
case of a second pr subsequent violation, the amount of such penalty may not be more than
$97,500.00 for each day during which the violation continues.

1

Civil penalties under Section 109(a) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9609(a), may be assessed
by Administrati+ Order and are to be assessed and collected in the same manner, and subject to
the same provisions, as in the case of penalties assessed and collected after notice and
opportunity for ~earing on the record in accordance with Section 554 of the Administrative
Procedure Act, IU.S.C. § 554.

To develbp the proposed penalty in this Complaint, Complainant has taken into account
the nature, circu~stances, extent, and gravity of the violation or violations and, with respect to
the violator, ability to pay, any prior history of such violations, the degree of culpability,
economic benefit or savings (if any) resulting from the violation, and such matters as justice may
require, with sp~cific reference to EPA's Enforcement Response Policy for Sections 304, 311,
and 312 ofthe Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act and Section 103 ofthe
Comprehensive fEnvironmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act ("ERP "), dated
September 30, 11999, a copy of which is enclosed with this Complaint as Attachment C. This
policy provides rrational, consistent and equitable calculation methodology for applying the
statutory penaltx authorities described above to particular cases.

On the ~asis of the violations of CERCLA described above, Complainant has determined
that Respondent is subject to penalties for violations under Section 109(a) of CERCLA, 42
U.S.C. § 9609(~). Accordingly, Complainant proposes a civil penalty in the amount of
$44,330.00 pursuant to the authority of Section 109(a) of CERCLA. 42 U.S.C. § 9609(a), as set
forth below. T~is does not constitute a "demand" as that term is defmed in the Equal Access to
Justice Act, 28i.s.c. § 2412.

Count I: I Failure to notify the NRC immediately following the July 3, 2005 Release
of 1,3-butadiene in a quantity equal to, or greater than, its RQ, in violation
of Section 103(a) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9603(a), and 40 C.F.R.
§ 302.6
Extent Level 2, Gravity Level A $20,150.00

Count V: Failure to notify the NRC immediately following the Release of
styrene in a quantity equal to, or greater than, its RQ, in violation of
Section 103(a) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.c. § 9603(a), and 40 C.F.R. § 302.6
Extent Levell, Gravity Level A $24,180.00

-9-
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$20,150.00.
$24,180.00.

I
[n the Matter of Doiw Reichhold Specialty Latex, LLC

Base penllty Calculation:

I

Nature ofViolation - The violations by Respondent alleged in Counts I and V of
the Complaint address emergency response matters and concerns. Respondent's violations had a
deleterious effec~ upon the reporting system under CERCLA, which is intended and designed to
enable federal, st~te, and local governmental entities to be able to respond properly to chemical
releases at and frpm facilities in their communities. Respondent's violations, therefore, pose a
potential for harm not only to the CERCLA regulatory system, but also the protection of the
environment anj human health.

Extent Level- The Extent Level for Respondent's violation as alleged in Count I
of the Complaint is Level 2 due to Respondent's failure to notifY the NRC of the Butadiene
Release for morJ than one hour, but less than two hours, after gaining knowledge of the release.

r

The Extent Level for Respondent's violation as alleged in Count V of the Complaint is Level I
due to Respond9nt's failure to notifY the NRC of the Styrene Release for more than two hours
after gaining kniWledge of the release.

Gravity Level- The Gravity Level for Respondent's violation as alleged in Count
I of the Complaint is Level A due to the fact that the amount of 1,3-butadiene (approximately
1,154 pounds) r~leased to the environment from the Dover facility was greater than 10 times its
RQ of 10 pounds. The Gravity Level for Respondent's violation as alleged in Count V of the
Complaint is al~o Level A due to the fact that the amount of styrene (approximately 19,601
pounds) releaseJi to the environment from the Dover facility was greater than 10 times its RQ of
1000 pounds. 1Gravity Level of A for these Counts incorporates and takes into account the
nature and extent ofhann posed by Respondent's violations concerning the Butadiene Release
and the Styrene IRelease.

Base Penalty Total - In light of the adjustments to penalties instituted by the
DCIA and the ~enalty Inflation Rule, and the fact that the allegations of Counts I and V ofthe
Complaint addrf:ss violations by Respondent which occurred after March 15. 2004, an Extent
Level of 1 and ~ Gravity Level of A for Respondent's violations as alleged in Counts I and V of
the Complaint ~esults in a Base Penalty of $20,150.00 for Count I and a Base Penalty of
$24,180.00 for Fount v.

Multi-Day Penalty: In light of the facts ofthe action at bar, EPA in its enforcement
discretion is not seeking imposition of a multi-day penalty against Respondent for the violations
alleged in cou1ts I and V of the Complaint.

Propos~d Penalty - Count I:
r

Proposed Penalty. Count V:

-10-
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$44,330.00TOTAL PROP0

1

, SED CERCLA PENALTY;

PROPOSED EPCRA PENALTY

I
Section 3P(b) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11045(b), authorizes EPA to assess a penalty not

to exceed $25,00p.00 per violation of Section 304 ofEPCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 11004. Pursuant to
the DCIA and the subsequent Penalty Inflation Rule, violations of Section 304 of EPCRA, 42
U.S.c. § 11004, rhich occur after March 15,2004, are subject to a statutory maximum penalty
of$32,500.00 per violation. In the case ofa second or subsequent violation, the amount of such
penalty may not be more than $97,500.00 for each day during which the violation continues.

Civil penlltieS under Section 325(b) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 11045(b), may be assessed
by Administrati+ Order and are to be assessed and collected in the same manner, and subject to
the same provisions, as in the case of penalties assessed and collected after notice and
opportunity for ~earing on the record in accordance with Section 554 of the Administrative
Procedure Act, JU.S.C. § 554.

To develop the penalty proposed in this Complaint, Complainant has taken into account
the nature, circutnstances, extent, and gravity of the violations and, with respect to the violator,
ability to pay, ariy prior history of such violations, the degree of culpability, economic benefit or
savings (if any) tesulting from the violation, and such matters as justice may require, with
specific referende to EPA's ERP, dated September 30, 1999. This policy provides a rational,
consistent, and ~quitable calculation methodology for applying the statutory penalty authorities
described abovelto particular cases.

On the br,sis ofthe violations of EPCRA described above, Complainant has determined
that Responden~ is subject to penalties for violations of Sections 304(a) and (b) and 304(c) of
EPCRA, 42 u.~.c. §§ I I004(a) and (b), 11004(c). Accordingly, Complainant proposes a civil
penalty in the amount of $72,540.00 pursuant to the authority of Section 325 of EPCRA, 42
U.S.c. § 11045i as set forth below. This does not constitute a "demand" as that term is defined
in the Equal Access to Justice Act, 28 U.S.c. § 2412.

Count II: Failure to notify the SERC immediately following the July 3,2005
Release of 1,3-butadiene in a quantity equal to, or greater than, its RQ, in
violation of Section 304(a) and (b) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11004(a) and
(b), and 40 C.F.R. § 355.40(b)(l) and (2)
Extent Levell, Gravity Level A $28,340.00
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Count III:

Count IV:

Count VI:

Failure to notify the LEPC immediately following the July 3, 2005
Release of I ,3-butadiene in a quantity equal to, or greater than, its RQ, in
violation of Section 304(a) and (b) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 11004(a) and
(b), and 40 C.F.R. § 355.40(b)(I) and (2)
Extent Levell, Gravity Level A $28,340.00

Failure to provide a written follow-up report to the SERC as soon as
practicable after the July 3, 2005 Release of I ,3-butadiene in a quantity
equal to, or greater than, its RQ, in violation of Section 304(c) of EPCRA,
42 U.S.C. § 11004(c), and 40 C.F.R. § 355.40(b)(3)
Extent Levell, Gravity Level A $28,340.00

Failure to provide a written follow-up report to the SERC as soon as
practicable after the August 25,2006 Release of styrene in a quantity
equal to, or greater than, its RQ, in violation of Section 304(c) of EPCRA,
42 U.S.C. § 11004(c), and 40 C.F.R. § 355.40(b)(3)
Extent Levell, Gravity Level A $24,180.00

Base Penalty Calculation:

I
Nature ofViolation - The violations by Respondent alleged in Counts II through

IV and VI of the IComplaint address emergency response matters and concerns. Respondent's
violations had a i1eleterious effect upon the reporting system under EPCRA, which is intended

I

and designed to enable federal, state, and local governmental entities to be able to respond
properly to cheniical releases at and from facilities in their communities and in surrounding
communities. R6spondent's violations, therefore, pose not only a potential for harm to the
EPCRA regulatdry system, but also the protection of the environment and human health.

E~tent Level - The Extent Level for Respondent's violations as alleged in Count
II and III of the (Complaint is Level I due to Respondent's failure to notify the SERC and LEPC
of the Butadiene! Release for more than two hours after gaining knowledge of the release. The
Extent Level fori Respondent's violations as alleged in Count IV of the Complaint is Level I due
to Respondent's failure to provide a written follow-up report to the SERC for more than 14 days
after the Butadidne Release. The Extent Level for Respondent's violations as alleged in Count
VI of the Compl~int is also Level I due to Respondent's failure to provide a written follow-up
report to the SErC for more than 14 days after the Styrene Release.

Gravity Level- The Gravity Level for Respondent's violation as alleged in Counts
II through IV of Ithe Complaint is Level A due to the fact that the quantity of 1,3-butadiene
(approximately ),154 pounds) released from the Respondent's Dover facility was greater than 10
times its RQ of 10 pounds. The Gravity Level for Respondent's violation as alleged in Count
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I
VI of the Complaint is also Level A due to the fact that the quantity of styrene (approximately
19,601 pounds) ~eleased from the Respondent's Dover facility was greater than 10 times its RQ
of 1000 pounds. I As a result, a Gravity Level of A for these Counts incorporates and takes into
account the natur~ and extent of harm posed by Respondent's violations concerning the Release.

Blse Penalty Total- In light of the adjustments to penalties instituted by the
DCIA and the Pehalty Inflation Rule, and the fact that the allegations of Counts II through IV
and VI of the Cofuplaint address violations by Respondent which occurred after March 15,2004,
an Extent Level ¥I and Gravity Level of A for Respondent's violations as alleged in Counts II
through IV and \(1 of the Complaint result in a Base Penalty of $85,020.00 for Counts II through
IV, and a Base Penalty of $24, 180.00 for Count VI.

I
Multi-Day Penalty: In light of the facts of the action at bar, EPA in its enforcement

discretion is not ~eeking imposition of a multi-day penalty against Respondent for the violations
alleged in Count~ II through IV and VI of the Complaint.

I .

Pronosed Penalty - Counts II - IV: $85,020.00
Proposed Penalty - Count VI: $24,180.00

I
TOTAL PROPOSED EPCRA PENALTY:

I .
TOTAL PROPFSED CERCLA AND EPCRA PENALTIES: $153,530.00

EPA will consider, among other factors, Respondent's ability to pay to adjust the
I

proposed civil penalty assessed in this Complaint. The burden of raising and demonstrating an
inability to pay ~ests with the Respondent In addition, to the extent that facts and circumstances
unknown to Complainant at the time of issuance of this Complaint become known after issuance
of the Complaidt, such facts and circumstances may also be considered as a basis for adjusting
the proposed ci\il penalty assessed in this Complaint.

!NOTICE OF OPPORTUNITY TO REOUEST A HEARING

Within 30 days of receipt of this Complaint, Respondent may request a hearing before an
EPA Administr1tive Law Judge on the Complaint. At the hearing, Respondent may contest any
material fact as [\veil as the appropriateness of any penalty amount To request a hearing,
Respondent must file a written Answer within 30 days of receipt of this Complaint. The Answer
should clearly ind directly admit, deny, or explain each of the factual allegations contained in
this Complaint pfwhich Respondent has any knowledge. Where Respondent has no knowledge
of a particular factual allegation, the Answer should so state. Such a statement will be deemed to
be a denial of tI\e allegation. The Answer should also contain: the circumstances or arguments
that are alleged to constitute the grounds of any defense; the facts that Respondent disputes; the
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basis for oPPosinl any proposed relief; and whether a hearing is requested. The denial of any
material fact or t~e raising of any affirmative defense shall be construed as a request for a
hearing. Failure by Respondent to admit, deny, or explain any material factual allegation

,

contained in the Complaint constitutes an admission of that allegation.

IfRespJdent fails to file a written Answer within 30 days of receipt of this
Complaint, such failure shall constitute an admission of all facts alleged in the Complaint
and a waiver of/the right to a hearing. Failure to file an Answer could result in the filing of
a Motion for D~fault and the possible issuance of a Default Order imposing the penalties
proposed herei, without further proceedings.

Any hearing requested by Respondent shall be conducted in accordance with the
Consolidated Rules of Practice, 40 C.F.R. Part 22, a copy of which is provided as Attachment A.
Respondent mustI send any request for a hearing to:

I

Regional Hearing Clerk (3RCOO)
U.S. EPA Region III
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029

A copy of Respondent's Answer and all other documents that Respondent files in this
action should be/sent to Allison F. Gardner, Assistant Regional Counsel, the attorney assigned to
represent EPA in this matter, at:

Allison F. Gardner (3RC42)
Assistant Regional Counsel
U.S. EPA Region III
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029

Respondent's rights to appeal an Order assessing a CERCLA penalty are set forth in 40
C.F.R. §§ 22.30iand 22.39(b), and in Section 109(a) ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.C. § 9609(a), which
provides in releJant part that:

Any person against whom a civil penalty is assessed under this subsection may
0lbtain review thereof in the appropriate district court of the United States by
filing a notice of appeal in such court within 30 days from the date of such order
ard by simultaneously sending a copy of such notice by certified mail to the
,reSident.
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RespondJnt's rights to appeal an Order assessing an EPCRA penalty are set forth in 40
C.F.R. § 22.30, afd in Section 325(£)(1) of EPCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 11045(£)(1), which provides in
relevant part thatI

Ahy person against whom a civil penalty is assessed under this section may
obtain review thereof in the appropriate district court of the United States by
filing a notice of appeal in such court within 30 days after the date of such order
arld by simultaneously sending a copy of such notice by certified mail to the
Administrator.

OUICK RESOLUTION

In accord,ance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.l8(a), Respondent may resolve this proceeding at any
time by paying t~e specific penalty proposed in this Complaint. If Respondent pays the specific
penalty proposed in this Complaint within 30 days ofreceiving this Complaint, then, pursuant to

I
40 C.F.R. § 22.1

1

8(a)(1), no Answer need be filed.

If Respondent wishes to resolve this proceeding by paying the penalty proposed in this
Complaint inste~d offtling an Answer, but needs additional time to pay the penalty, pursuant to
40 C.F.R. § 22.l!8(a)(2). Respondent may file a written statement with the Regional Hearing
Clerk within 30 rays after receiving this Complaint, stating that Respondent agrees to pay the
proposed penalty in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.l8(a)(I). Such written statement need not
contain any response to, or admission of, the allegations in the Complaint. Such statement shall
be filed with th9 Regional Hearing Clerk (3RCOO), U.S. EPA, Region III, 1650 Arch Street,
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-2029, and a copy shall be provided to Allison F. Gardner
(3RC42), Assist1ant Regional Counsel, U.S. EPA, Region 1II, 1650 Arch Street, Philadelphia,

I

Pennsylvania 1~103-2029. Within 60 days of receiving the Complaint, Respondent shall pay the
full amount of the proposed penalty. Failure to make such payment within 60 days of receipt of
the Complaint ray subject the Respondent to default pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22.17.

In accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 22.l8(a)(3), upon receipt of payment in full, the Regional
Judicial Officer Ior Regional Administrator shall issue a final order. Payment by Respondent
shall constitute ~ waiver of Respondent's right to contest the allegations and to appeal the final

order. I

Payment of the CERCLA penalty shall be made by sending a cashier's check made
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U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Superfund Payments
Cincinnati Finance Center
P.O. Box 979076
St. Louis, MO 63197-9000

EPA Docket No.:CERC-03-2008-0344
EPCRA-03-2008-0344

Payment of the EPCRA penalty shall be made by sending a cashier's check made payable
to the "Treasurer of the United States of America," in care of:

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties
Cincinnati Finance Center
P.O. Box 979077
St. Louis, MO 63197-9000

The checks should reference the name and docket numbers of this Complaint. At the
same time paymbnt is made, copies of the checks shall be mailed to: Regional Hearing Clerk

I

(3RCOO), U.S. EpA, Region III, 1650 Arch Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-2029 and
to Allison F. Gatdner (3RC42), Assistant Regional Counsel, U.S. EPA, Region 111, 1650 Arch
Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-2029.

SETTLEMENT CONFERENCE

Whether or not Respondent requests a hearing, an informal conference may be requested
to discuss the facts of this case and to arrive at a settlement. To request an informal settlement
conference, ple~se write to or telephone:

Allison F. Gardner (3RC42)
Assistant Regional Counsel
U.S. EPA Region III
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103
(215) 814-2631

I

Please note that a request for, the scheduling of, or the participation in, an informal
settlement confJrence does not extend the 30-day period during which a written Answer and
Request for Hedring must be submitted as set forth above. The informal settlement conference
procedure, howbver, may be pursued simultaneously with the adjudicatory hearing procedure.

I
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EPA enco1urages all parties against whom a civil penalty is proposed to pursue settlement
through an infoITl}al conference. In the event settlement is reached, its terms shall be expressed
in a written Consfnt Agreement prepared by Complainant, signed by the parties and incorporated
into a final Order, signed by the Regional Administrator or his designee. SETTLEMENT
CONFERENCES SHALL NOT AFFECT THE REQUIREMENT TO FILE A TIMELY,

ANSWER TO TfE COMPLAINT.

SEPARATION OF FUNCTIONS AND EX PARTE COMMUNICATIONS

The fOllOLng EPA offices, and the staffs thereof, are designated as the trial staff to
represent EPA asl a party in this case: The Region III Office of Regional Counsel; the Region III
Hazardous Site Qleanup Division; the Office of the EPA Assistant Administrator for Solid Waste
and Emergency ~esponse; and the Office of the EPA Assistant Administrator for Enforcement
and Compliance [Assurance. From the date ofthis Complaint until the final Agency decision in
this case, neitherlthe Administrator, members ofthe Environmental Appeals Board, Presiding
Officer, Regional Administrator, nor the Regional Judicial Officer shall have any ex parte
communication ~ith the EPA trial staff or the Respondent on the merits of any issues involved
in this proceeding. Please be advised that the Consolidated Rules prohibit any unilateral
discussion or ex parte communication of the merits of a case with the Administrator, members of
the Environmental Appeals Board, Presiding Officer, Regional Administrator or Regional
Judicial Officer, ~fter issuance of a Complaint.

A.

B.

c.

D.

ATTACHMENTS

Consolidlted Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative Assessment of Civil
Penaltiesl Issuance of Compliance or Corrective Action Orders, and the Revocation,
Terminatr"on, or Suspension of Permits ("Consolidated Rules of Practice"), 40 C.F.R. Part
22

Debt Co~lection Improvement Act of 1996 ("DCIA") and subsequent Civil Monetary
Penalty Inflation Adjustment Rule, 69 Fed. Reg. 7121, (Feb. 13, 2004), 40 C.F.R. Part 19
("Penalt~ Inflation Rule")

EI1(Orcefent Response Policy for Section 304, 311 and 312 ofthe Emergency Planning
and Community Right-to-Know Act and Section 103 ofthe Comprehensive
EnVironI' ental Response, Compensation and Liability Act ("ERP "), dated September 30,
1999

Detailed(Ummary ofCERCLA and EPCRA Proposed Penalties
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GENERAL PROVISIONS

EPA Docket No.:CERC-03-2008-0344
EPCRA-03-2008-0344

Issuance of this Complaint shall not constitute or be construed as a waiver by EPA of its
rights against Rekpondent, including, but not limited to, the right to expend and recover funds
under CERCLA,lto bring enforcement actions under Section 106 ofCERCLA, 42 U.S.c. § 9606,
and Section 7003 of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as amended, ("RCRA"), 42
U.S.C. § 6973. tJ address releases including those identified in this Complaint, and to require

furth~ ,,"," ~ r'~~""ill ~,,,,,"d ill m, ,d"" ""dre,,"" ie <hi, C,mpl,m,.

&/1/10& 73~
DATE
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In the Matter Of/:

I

Dow Reichhold Specialty
Latex, LLC
2400 Ellis Road
Durham, North ·Icarolina
27703,

I

Respondent.

Dow Reichhold j.pecialty
Latex, LLC

,

144 Fork Branc~ Road
Dover, Delaware
19904,

Facility.

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

EPA Docket No.: CERC-03-2008-0344
EPA Docket No.: EPCRA-03-2008-0344

Administrative Complaint and Notice of
Opportunity for a Hearing filed under Sections
103 and 109 of the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation, and
Liahility Act, as amended, 42 V.S.c. §§ 9603,
9609, and Sections 304 and 325 of the
Emergency Planning and Community
Right-to-Know Act of 1986, 42 V.S.c. §§ 11004,
11045

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, the undersigned, hereby certify that on the date provided below, I hand-delivered and
filed the original/of Complainant United States Environmental Protection Agency's
Administrative aomplaint and Notice of Opportunity for a Hearing, with the Regional Hearing

I

Clerk, EPA Region III, 1650 Arch Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103-2029, and that true
I

and correct copi~s of the Administrative Complaint and Notice of Opportunity for a Hearing,
along with its eJclosures and/or attachments, were sent by certified mail, return receipt
requested, to:

Mr. Jeffrey L. w,lelker
President
Dow Reichhold I'pecialty Latex, LLC
2400 Ellis Road I

Durham, North <f=arolina 27703

Allison F. G dner
Assistant Regional Counsel
Counsel for Complainant
(215) 814-2631


